
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

 
 

 
 

THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

NBHA REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

Thursday, October 17, 2024, 5:15 pm 

 

 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services such 
as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large print, are requested to 
contact the NBHA’s Administrative Office at 830.625.6909 x202 at least two (2) workdays prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.  



CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 2 of 62 

AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
 

C. CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATION  
 
This time is for citizens to address the Board on issues and items of concern. Pursuant to 
the Texas Open Meetings Act, there will be no Board discussion or action on items not on 
the agenda. Each citizen will be given five (5) minutes to speak.  

 
D. MINUTES 

 
1. Discussion and approval of minutes of the New Braunfels Housing Authority Board 

of Commissioners meeting of July 18, 2024. 
 

 
E. INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
1. Financials 

a. Discussion and resolution to approve the Third Quarter (Q3) payables. 

b. Discussion and resolution to approve the New Braunfels Housing Authority's 
2023-2024 Year to Date Financial Reports. 

 
2. Public Housing Budget 

 
a. Discussion and resolution to approve the New Braunfels Housing Authority 2024-

2025 Operating Budget. 
 

3. Audit Report 
 

a. Discussion and resolution to approve the Audit Report for FYE 2022-2023. 

4. 2025 Fair Market Rents (FMR) and Payment Standards  
 

a. Discussion and resolution to approve the 2025 Fair Market Rent (FMR) and 
Payment Standards. 

 
5.  Resolution and inducement authorizing the execution of all filings and agreements 

with Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs in connection with 
applications for Low Income Housing Tax Credits for The Villa Serena Phase 1 
Apartments transaction; and other matters in connection therewith.  



CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 3 of 62 

6. Resolution and inducement authorizing the execution of all filings and agreements with 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs in connection with applications 
for Low Income Housing Tax Credits for The Park At Dogwood transaction; and other 
matters in connection therewith.  

 
F. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

 
Operations Update  
 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT.  

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids 
or services such as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large 
print, are requested to contact the NBHA’s Administrative Office at 830.625.6909 x202 at least 
two (2) workdays prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 4 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 5 of 62 
 

 
 

D. DRAFT MINUTES 
 

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, met 
in a Regular Session, on July 18, 2024, at 5:15 pm. 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:                           COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Vice-Chair Person Sarah Dixon     Commissioner Justin Botter 
Commissioner Cinderella Brown 
Commissioner Raymond Marquez 
Chairperson Sharon Samples 
                           
STAFF: 
Henry Alvarez, Executive Director 
Irene Cantu, Administrative Assistant 
Mickey Lloyd, Programs Manager 
Stacy Howard, Administrative Assistant 
Isabel Lee MBA 
Doug Poneck,  
Jeff Darby, Senior Counsel 
Nathan Brown, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
Ms. Samples called the meeting to order at 5:20 pm 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
Mrs. Cantu called Roll. A quorum was present. 
 
 Public Hearing   
 
Hearing to receive comments on the PHA 2024-2028 Five-Year Plan. 
 
No public comment. 
 
 Citizens’ Communication 
 
Three (3) citizens were heard. 
 
 MINUTES 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 6 of 62 
 

Discussed and approved the minutes of the Regular Board of Commissioners meeting of 
of April 18, 2024. 
 
Commissioner Marquez motioned to accept the minutes. Commissioner Dixon seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously. 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
 

1. Discussion and resolution to approve the PHA 2024-2028 Five-Year Plan  
for the New Braunfels Housing Authority. 

 
Mrs. Lee provided the item. Executive Director Alvarez spoke on the item. 
Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the item. Commissioner Dixon seconded which passed 
unanimously. 
 

2. Discussion and resolution to approve the Second Quarter (Q2) Payables 
 

Mrs. Lee provided the reports.  
Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the item. Commissioner Dixon seconded which passed 
unanimously. 
 

3. Discussion and resolution to approve the New Braunfels Housing Authority’s 
2023-2024 Year to Date Financial Reports. 
 

Mrs. Lee provided the reports.  Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the report.  
Commissioner Dixon seconded, which passed unanimously. 

 
4. Discussion and resolution to approve New Braunfels Housing Authority Tenant 

Account Receivables Write-Off. 
 

Ms. Lee presented the item. Additionally, Executive Director Alvarez spoke on the item. 
Commissioner Marquez motioned to approve the items. Commissioner Dixon seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously. 

     
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Master Developer Update 
Executive Director Alvarez provided the updates. 

Commissioner Marquez moved to approve the update. Dixon seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously. 

 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 7 of 62 
 

 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION-Closed Session  

 

a. Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Section 551.071—Consultation with attorney and 
    consideration of proposal regarding Case No. C2022-1609B; Housing 
    Authority of the City of New Braunfels v. Ellis Townhomes Inc., et al. 

 
CONVENE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION   
 
Convened into Executive session at 5:28 p.m.  
 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
 
Reconvened into open session at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Cinderella Brown moved to authorize amending the NBCR legal action be 
amended to add The Heart of the Family Assistance, Inc., as a party to the existing NBCR legal 
matter as discussed during Closed-Session.  Commissioner Dixon provided a second to the 
motion.  All Commissioners were in Favor.  The motion was adopted. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Without objections, the meeting was adjourned at 6:08 p.m. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 8 of 62 
 

Attest: 

 
 
 
             
Sharon Samples, Chairperson     Date 
 

 
 
 
              
Henry Alvarez,       Date 
Executive Director               
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 9 of 62 
 

AGENDA ITEM E1A 

 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202410170001A approval of the Authority’s 
Third (3) Quarters Payables. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 

The payables report captures operational expenditure at the end of the third (3rd) quarter. The New 
Braunfels Housing Authority (NBHA) reports $402,208 at month end of June 2024. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reflects the accounts/vendors paid for referenced quarters. These include payments such as,  

Pickett Pest Control $16,395 
The City of New Braunfels (PILOT) Payment in Lieu of Taxes $86,055 
Escamilla & Poneck (Legal) $87,352 
HD Supplies (Maintenance Supplies) 29,901 
M&M (Unit Make Readies) 30,606 
MEDA (Temporary Staffing for Maintenance) 23,725 

 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the third (3rd) Quarter payables.  

ATTACHMENT: 

Accounts Payable Reports – Third (3rd) Quarter 

 

 

 

 

  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 10 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 11 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 12 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 13 of 62 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 202410170001A 
 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF THIRD (3RD) QUARTER PAYABLES 
REPORT.  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 

Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires 
Housing Authority Boards to review and approves Authority expenditures; and  

WHEREAS, The HUD required auditors to recommend a similar Authority review of its 
operational expenditures. 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the City of New Braunfels Housing 
Authority Board of Commissioners hereby accepts and approves the Third (3rd) Quarter Payables 
Reports. 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 14 of 62 
 

CERTIFICATEFOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a public 
instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas {"NBHA"} hereby certifies as 
follows:  

1. In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
{the "Board"} held a meeting on October 17, 2024 {the "Meeting"} of the duly 
constituted officers and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum 
was present. Whereupon among other business transacted at the Meeting, a written  

APPROVAL OF THIRD (3RD) QUARTER PAYABLES REPORT 

(the “Resolution") was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board.  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board's 
minutes of the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly 
and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, 
and purpose of the Meeting; and the Meeting was held and conducted in accordance 
with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of NBHA.  

 

SIGNED AND SEALED       ,2024.  

 

____________________________________ 

Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 

 

(SEAL}  

 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 15 of 62 
 

AGENDA ITEM E1B 

 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202410170001B approval of the Authority’s 2023-
2024 Year to Date Financial Reports. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
Low Rent Public Housing: 
 
At month end August 31, 2024, the Operating Account has a remaining balance of $100,067. With an 
operating revenue of $47,438 and ($90,060) operating expenses, a total income loss of ($42,621).  Year to 
date, the Low Rent Program (“Public Housing”) at the end of August 2024, has a Net Operating loss of 
($58,746) mainly as a result of uncollected rent. However, Assets remain at $2,130,596.  
 
Housing Choice Voucher (Formerly Section Eight) 
 
At month end August 31, 2024, the Section 8 Operating Account has a remaining balance of $30,097. With 
an operating revenue of $209,443 and ($206,687) operating expenses, a total income of 2,755.   Year to 
date, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program at the end of August 2024, has a Net 
Operating loss of (82,469) consisting of uncollected Port In rents from other Housing Authorities. 
(Please note Section 8 is operated on a calendar basis).  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

Generally, reflects the overall financial health of the Authority.  Low Rent Public Housing is 
trending toward $42k, which is equivalent to the Tenant Account Receivables total. 

STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the 2023-2024 Year to Date Financial Reports.  

ATTACHMENT: 
 
2023-2024 Year to Date Financial Reports 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 16 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 17 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 18 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 19 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 20 of 62 
 

 
 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 21 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 22 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 23 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 24 of 62 
 

 
 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 25 of 62 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 202410170001B 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NBHA 2023-2024 YEAR TO DATE FINANCIAL 
REPORTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it serves the public interest and is in the 

best interest of NBHA to accept the 2023-2024 Year To Date Financial Reports; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to approve and accept the 2023-2024 

Year To Date Financial Reports;  
 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the NBHA 2022-2023 Year To Date 
Financial Reports;  
 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 26 of 62 
 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on October 17, 2024 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NBHA 2023-2024 YEAR TO DATE FINANCIAL 
REPORTS 
 
(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2024. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL) 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 27 of 62 
 

AGENDA ITEM E2 
              
 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202410170002 to approve the New 
Braunfels Housing Authority 2024-2025 Operating Budget. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
HUD provides annual operating subsidies to Public Housing Agencies (PHAs) to assist 
with operations and management expenses. The New Braunfels Housing Authority has completed 
an application to receive $531,183 which has consistently been near a ten percent (10%) proration 
to cover anticipated operational and management expenses for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 
1, 2024, through September 30, 2025. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

The New Braunfels Housing Authority 2024-2025 Operating Budget of $531,183 will provide 
the funding needs to operate and manage the Public Housing Low Rent Program. 

STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the New Braunfels Housing Authority 2024-2025 Operating 
Budget.  

ATTACHMENT: 

Board Resolution (HUD-52574) 

Form (HUD-52723)  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 28 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 29 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 30 of 62 
 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 31 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 32 of 62 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 202410170002 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 2024-
2025 OPERATING BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it serves the public interest and is in the 

best interest of NBHA to accept the approval of the New Braunfels Housing Authority 2024-2025 
Operating Budget.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to approve and accept the New Braunfels 

Housing Authority 2024-2025 Operating Budget.  
 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the New Braunfels Housing Authority 
2024-2025 Operating Budget. 
 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 33 of 62 
 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on October 17, 2024 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 2024-
2025 OPERATING BUDGET 
 
(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2024. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL) 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 34 of 62 
 

AGENDA ITEM E3 
 
 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202410170003 to approve the New 
Braunfels Housing Authority Audit Report for FYE 2022-2023. 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
Pursuant to the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 2, Subtitle A, Chapter II, Part 200, 
Subpart F; Audit Requirements, non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more during the non-
Federal entity’s fiscal year in Federal awards must have a single or program-specific audit 
conducted for that year.  
 
Reporting is done in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as 
promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board Reporting (GASB). All PHAs 
report the results of their audits electronically through HUD’s FASS-PH system. The FASS-PH 
system was developed under an “entity-wide” concept; that is, PHAs report all the programs and 
activities that are administered by the PHA. Under this concept, HUD is generally able to obtain a 
higher level of assurance on the accuracy of the financial data as the financial data is directly 
comparable to the audit required under Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 2, Subtitle A, 
Chapter II, Part 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements.  
 
The Audit was conducted by Leal & Carter, PC.  The Audit reports no finding.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
All NBHA programs are subject to these Audit Requirements to receive continued funding from 
HUD. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends acceptance of the Audit Report 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

NBHA 2023 FISCAL YEAR AUDIT REPORT SUMMARY 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 35 of 62 
 

 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 36 of 62 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 202410170003 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
AUDIT REPORT FOR FYE 2022-2023 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it serves the public interest and is in the 

best interest of NBHA to accept the approval of the New Braunfels Housing Authority Audit 
Report for FYE 2022-2023.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to approve and accept the New Braunfels 

Housing Authority FYE 2022-2023 Audit Report.  
 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the New Braunfels Housing Authority 
Audit Report for FYE 2022-2023. 
 

Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 37 of 62 
 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on October 17, 2024 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 
AUDIT REPORT FOR FYE 2022-2023  

 
(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2024. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL)  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 38 of 62 
 

AGENDA ITEM E4 
 
 
SUBJECT: 

Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202410170004 authorizing the revised 
Housing Choice Voucher Fair Market Rents and Payment Standards and Public Housing Flat 
Rent for Fiscal Year 2025.  

BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) publishes Fair Market Rents 
(FMRs) annually for each area of the United States and requires each housing authority to adopt a 
Voucher payment standard schedule for each FMR area in its jurisdiction and FLAT Rent for its 
Public Housing portfolios. Payment standard is defined as "the maximum assistance payment for 
a family assisted in the voucher program (before deducting the total tenant payment by the family)" 
[24 CFR 982.4(b)]. HUD permits the housing authority to establish a voucher payment standard 
amount for each unit size at any level between 90% and 110%-referred to as the "basic range"-of 
the FMR for the unit size [24 CFR 982.503(b)(1)(i)]. The Public Housing Flat rent must be set to 
lower of 80% of the FMR or the Small area Fair Market Rent (SAFMR). In November 2016, the 
Small Area Fair Market Rent (SAFMR) Final Rule (Federal Register Notice FR-5855-F-03) 
mandated certain metropolitan areas, including the San Antonio-New Braunfels metro area, to use 
SAFMRs in the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program. NBHA utilizes the lower metro area 
FMR for the Flat rent calculation.  

HUD has recently published the FMRs for Fiscal Year 2025. HUD allows housing authorities to 
establish the payment standard amounts at any level between 90% and 110% of the published 
FMR. The 2025 Voucher payment standards have been set to 90% of the associated FMR. This 
methodology allows the NBHA to absorb the increase in the payment standard over time and to 
maximize the number of families that can participate in the Voucher program.  

The proposed payment standards for 2025 will be effective for all Housing Assistance Payment 
Contracts with an effective date of January 1, 2025, or later.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The Voucher Program is a budget-based subsidy program provided by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Increases in Voucher Payment Standards, generally 
increase rent subsidy to private landlord participants. The Voucher Program budget is currently 
$2.2M with 231 program participants. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the Fiscal Year 2025 Voucher Payment Standards and Public 
Housing Flat Rent. 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 39 of 62 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

2025 Fair Market Rents  

Voucher Payment Standards and Public Housing Flat Rent  

  



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 40 of 62 
 

 



 
CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

Page 41 of 62 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 202410170004 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY 2025 
FAIR MARKET RENT (FMR) PAYMENT STANDARDS AND PUBLIC HOUSING 
FLAT RENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of New 
Braunfels, Texas, a public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas 
(“NBHA”) recognizes the importance of responding to the housing and support needs of its 
residents in times of emergency or calamity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) annually 

establishes fair market rents (FMRs) for each area in the United States.; and 
 
WHEREAS, HUD requires the Public Housing Authority to establish voucher payment 

standards for each unit size; and.  
 

 WHEREAS, NBHA staff request authorization to establish the 2025 Fair Market Rent and 
Payment standard be set at 90% of the 2025 HUD published Small Area FMR schedule to ensure 
current flat rent and the payment standard schedules are compliant with federal regulations. 
 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Board hereby accepts and approves the 2025 Flat Rent and Voucher 
Payment Standards consistent with HUD regulations, attached hereto; 

 
Section 2.  If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held 

to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.   
 

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Board. 
 

Section 4.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 
  



 

 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 
 

The undersigned officer of the Housing Authority of the City of New Braunfels, Texas, a 
public instrumentality created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (“NBHA”) hereby certifies 
as follows: 

 
            1.           In accordance with the bylaws of NBHA, the Board of Commissioners of NBHA 
(the “Board”) held a meeting on October 17, 2024 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted officers 
and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  Whereupon among 
other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 
 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF NEW BRAUNFELS HOUSING AUTHORITY PUBLIC 
HOUSING FLAT RENT AND VOUCHER PROGRAM PAYMENT STANDARDS 

(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said 
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed, and carried by a majority vote 
of the Board. 
 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of NBHA. 

 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED __________, 2024. 
 
 

  
Henry Alvarez, Secretary/Executive Director 
 
 

(SEAL) 
  



 

 

AGENDA ITEM E5 
 
SUBJECT: 
 
Consideration and approval regarding resolution no. 202410170005 and inducement authorizing 
the execution of all filings and agreements with Texas department of housing and community 
affairs in connection with applications for low-income housing tax credits for the Villa Serena 
Phase 1 apartments transaction; and other matters in connection therewith 
 
BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
The NBHA has been presented with an opportunity to partner with HRI Communities, LLC 
(“HRIC”) to redevelop the Villa Serena and Laurel Plaza properties. Commencing with the Villa 
Serena Phase I’s proposed conceptual design, preliminary unit mix and site plan. 
 
The proposed development anticipates seven five (75) apartment units, with a proposed unit mix 
of: 
 

Income Designation Unit Type Total Numbre of Units 
Affordable – 30% AMI (Section 811 PRA*)  1B 10 
Affordable - 30% AMI (Replacement RAD)  2B 7 
Affordable - 30% AMI (Replacement RAD)  3B 8 
Affordable - 50% AMI (Replacement RAD)  2B 8 
Affordable - 50% AMI (Replacement RAD)  3B 7 
Affordable - 60% AMI  1B 20 
Workforce - 60% AMI  2B 7 
Market Rate  1B 6 
Market Rate 2B 2 

  Section 811 Project Rental Assistance Program 
 
Eighty nine percent of units will be affordable at 60% to 30% of Area Media Income (AMI). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Expenditures will be reimbursed from project development. 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval authorizing resolution and inducement authorizing the execution of 
all filings and agreements with and inducement authorizing the execution of all filings and 
agreements with Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs in connection with 
applications for Low Income Housing Tax Credits for The Villa Serena Phase 1 Apartments 
transaction; and other matters in connection therewith. 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
Villa Serena Phase I Site Plan 
 



 

 

Villa Serena Phase I site Plan 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
  



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 202410170005 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 202410170005 AND INDUCEMENT AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF ALL FILINGS AND AGREEMENTS WITH TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS IN CONNECTION WITH 
APPLICATIONS FOR LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS FOR THE VILLA 
SERENA APARTMENTS TRANSACTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION 
OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING; AND OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH 

 

WHEREAS, the New Braunfels Housing Authority (the “Authority”) was created to 
address the need for creation and preservation of safe and sanitary housing at affordable prices for 
persons of low and moderate income who are residents of the City of New Braunfels (the “City”); 

WHEREAS, a to-be-formed affiliate of the Authority and HRI Communities (the “User”), 
are contemplating an Application for financing (the “Application”), requesting that the Authority 
or an affiliate thereof participate in the acquisition, rehabilitation, construction, and equipping of 
a proposed 85-unit multifamily housing facility to be located at the intersection of S Seguin Road 
and Rosa Parks Drive, New Braunfels, Texas and to be known as the Villa Serena Apartments (the 
“Project”); 

WHEREAS, the User intends to finance the Project in part with 9% housing tax credits 
competitively procured from the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
(“TDHCA”) and one or more loans;  

WHEREAS, this Resolution shall constitute the Authority’s preliminary, non-binding 
commitment, subject to the terms hereof, to proceed; 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the User or an affiliate or affiliates thereof will define their 
mutual relationship in a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”); 

WHEREAS, the User has requested that the Authority create a nonprofit and/or single-
member limited liability company subsidiary of the Authority or of the nonprofit to serve as a 
general partner of the User; 

WHEREAS, the User has requested authorization to make all filings necessary to obtain 
and maintain equity and debt financing for the Project, including 9% tax credits from the TDHCA;  

 

 

 

 



 

 

WHEREAS, the members of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority (collectively, 
the “Board”) and their respective offices are as follows: 

           Name of Director/Officer   Position 
           Sharon Navarre Samples   Chairperson/Commissioner 
 Sarah Dixon     Vice-Chairperson/Commissioner 
 Justin Botter     Commissioner 
 Cinderella Brown    Commissioner  
  Raymond Marquez    Commissioner 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the public interest and to the benefit of 
the citizens and residents of New Braunfels for the various entities to enter into the transactions 
described above so that the User may construct the Project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has reviewed the foregoing and determined that the action herein 
authorized is in furtherance of the public purposes of the Authority; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE NEW BRAUNFELS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. Subject to the terms hereof, the Authority agrees that it will, acting in either 
its own capacity, through an affiliate thereof or as the party controlling the general partner of the 
User: 

(a) cooperate with the User with respect to the Project, and, if arrangements therefor 
satisfactory to the User and the Authority can be made, take such action and authorize the 
execution of such documents and take such further action as may be necessary or advisable for 
the authorization, execution, and delivery of any applications, notices, contracts or agreements 
deemed necessary and desirable by the User or the Authority in connection with the Project, 
specifically including any applications, agreements, documents, certificates and instruments 
necessary to obtain tax credits from the TDHCA (collectively, the “Contracts”), providing among 
other things for financing, acquisition, construction, equipping, and improvement of the Project; 
and use, operation, and maintenance of the Project, all as shall be authorized, required, or permitted 
by law and as shall be satisfactory to the Authority and the User; 

(b) if required, work with a historically underutilized business (“HUB”) or qualified 
nonprofit sharing ownership of the general partner of the User, sharing developer fees and cash 
flow of the User to enable the Project to be competitive in its tax credit 

(c) own the real estate and serve as the general contractor for the Project to obtain tax 
exemptions; 

(d) take or cause to be taken such other actions as may be required to implement the 
aforesaid undertakings or as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof. 

Neither the State of Texas (the “State”), the City, nor any political Authority, subdivision, or 
agency of the State shall be obligated to pay any debt or other obligation of the User or the 



 

 

Project and that neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State, the City, or any 
political, subdivision, or agency thereof is pledged to any obligation relating to the Project. 

Section 2. It is understood by the Authority, and the User has represented to the 
Authority, that in consideration of the Authority’s adoption of this Resolution, and subject to the 
terms and conditions hereof, the User has agreed that the User will: 

  



 

 

Section 3.  

(a)  pay all Project costs which are not or cannot be paid or reimbursed from the 
proceeds of any debt; and  

(b) indemnify and hold harmless the Authority and the City against all losses, costs, 
damages, expenses, and liabilities of whatsoever nature (including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, litigation and court costs, amounts paid in settlement, and amounts paid to 
discharge judgments) directly or indirectly resulting from, arising out of or related to the Project, 
or the design, construction, equipping, installation, operation, use, occupancy, maintenance, or 
ownership of the Project (other than claims arising from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the Authority or the City). 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be deemed to constitute the acceptance of the User’s 
proposal that it be further induced to proceed with providing the Project.  Provided that neither 
the User nor any other party is entitled to rely on this Resolution as a commitment to 
enter into the proposed transaction, and the Authority reserves the right not to enter into 
the proposed transaction either with or without cause and with or without notice, and in 
such event the Authority shall not be subject to any liability or damages of any nature.  
Neither the User nor anyone claiming by, through or under the User, nor any investment 
banking firm or potential purchaser shall have any claim against the Authority whatsoever 
as a result of any decision by the Authority not to enter into the proposed transaction. 

Section 5. The Board authorizes the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Executive 
Director, or any Commissioner of the Board to execute any contracts and take any and all actions 
required to obtain tax credits, equity financing and debt financing, and to execute any applications 
and submissions to TDHCA for its 9% housing tax credit program. 

Section 6. The Board authorizes the negotiation and execution by any officer(s) of the 
Board of the MOU setting forth the details of the Project. 

Section 7. The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Executive Director, or any 
Commissioner of the Board are authorized to take any and all action necessary to carry out and 
consummate the transactions described in or contemplated by the documents approved hereby or 
otherwise to give effect to the actions authorized hereby and the intent hereof. 

Section 8. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the Board. 

Section 9. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 10. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the Board 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 



 

 

Section 11. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 12. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 

 
* * * 

  



 

 

 

VILLA SERENA APARTMENTS 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned officer of the New Braunfels Housing Authority (the “Authority”) hereby 
certifies as follows: 

1. In accordance with the bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners of 
the Authority (the “Board”) held a meeting on October 17, 2024 (the “Meeting”), of the duly 
constituted officers and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  
Whereupon among other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 202410170005 AND INDUCEMENT AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF ALL FILINGS AND AGREEMENTS WITH TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS IN CONNECTION WITH 
APPLICATIONS FOR LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS FOR THE VILLA 
SERENA APARTMENTS TRANSACTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION 
OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING; AND OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH 

(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  
It was then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due 
discussion, said motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and 
carried by a majority vote of the Board. 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the 
Bylaws of the Authority. 

 
SIGNED AND SEALED October 17, 2024. 

 
        
Henry Alvarez 
Executive Director 

  



 

 

AGENDA ITEM E6 
 
 
SUBJECT: 
 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution No. 202410170006 on resolution and 
inducement authorizing the execution of all filings and agreements with Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs in connection with applications for Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits for The Park At Dogwood transaction; and other matters in connection therewith. 
 
BACKGROUND AND RATIONAL: 
 
The NBHA has been presented with an opportunity to participate and Partner in the Development 
of the Park At Dogwood in Partnership with The Park Companies.  The proposed development of 
eighty-five (85) multi-family affordable housing units, located at Old McQueeney Road, in the 
City of New Braunfels, Comal County, Texas, to be commonly known as Park at Dogwood. 
 
The proposed unit mix and affordability is as follows: 
 

 
 
All of the units are proposed to be affordable at 60% to 30% of Area Medium Income (AMI). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact 
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval authorizing the resolution and inducement authorizing the execution 
of all filings and agreements with Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs in 
connection with applications for Low Income Housing Tax Credits for The Park At Dogwood 
transaction; and other matters in connection therewith.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 

Conceptual Design and Site Plan 

 

PROJECT SELECTIONS
Bedrooms AMI % # of Units

1 Bedroom (30%) 30% 4                
1 Bedroom (50%) 50% 10              
1 Bedroom (60%) 60% 11              
2 Bedroom (30%) 30% 5                
2 Bedroom (50%) 50% 24              
2 Bedroom (60%) 60% 31              

Totals 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conceptual Design and Site Plan 

 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 202410170006 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 202410170006 AND INDUCEMENT AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF ALL FILINGS AND AGREEMENTS WITH TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS IN CONNECTION WITH 
APPLICATIONS FOR LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS FOR THE PARK AT 
DOGWOOD APARTMENTS TRANSACTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE 
NEGOTIATION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING; AND OTHER 
MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, the New Braunfels Housing Authority (the “Authority”) was created to 
address the need for creation and preservation of safe and sanitary housing at affordable prices for 
persons of low and moderate income who are residents of the City of New Braunfels (the “City”); 

WHEREAS, Comal Partners, L.P., a Mississippi limited partnership (the “User”), has 
filed an Application for financing (the “Application”), requesting that the Authority or an affiliate 
thereof participate in the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a proposed 85-unit 
multifamily housing facility to be located on 0 Old McQueeney Road, New Braunfels, Texas and 
to be known as the Park at Dogwood Apartments (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the User intends to finance the Project in part with 9% housing tax credits 
competitively procured from the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
(“TDHCA”) and one or more loans;  

WHEREAS, this Resolution shall constitute the Authority’s preliminary, non-binding 
commitment, subject to the terms hereof, to proceed; 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the User or an affiliate or affiliates thereof will define their 
mutual relationship in a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”); 

WHEREAS, the User has requested that the Authority create a nonprofit and/or single-
member limited liability company subsidiary of the Authority or of the nonprofit to serve as a 
general partner of the User; 

WHEREAS, the User has requested authorization to make all filings necessary to obtain 
and maintain equity and debt financing for the Project, including 9% tax credits from the TDHCA;  

WHEREAS, the members of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority (collectively, 
the “Board”) and their respective offices are as follows: 

 Name of Director/Officer   Position 
 Sharon Navarre Samples   Chairperson/Commissioner 
 Sarah Dixon     Vice-Chairperson/Commissioner 
 Justin Botter     Commissioner 
 Cinderella Brown    Commissioner  
 Raymond Marquez    Commissioner 
 



 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the public interest and to the benefit of 
the citizens and residents of New Braunfels for the various entities to enter into the transactions 
described above so that the User may construct the Project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has reviewed the foregoing and determined that the action herein 
authorized is in furtherance of the public purposes of the Authority; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE NEW BRAUNFELS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. Subject to the terms hereof, the Authority agrees that it will, acting in either 
its own capacity, through an affiliate thereof or as the party controlling the general partner of the 
User: 

(a) cooperate with the User with respect to the Project, and, if arrangements therefor 
satisfactory to the User and the Authority can be made, take such action and authorize the 
execution of such documents and take such further action as may be necessary or advisable for 
the authorization, execution, and delivery of any applications, notices, contracts or agreements 
deemed necessary and desirable by the User or the Authority in connection with the Project, 
specifically including any applications, agreements, documents, certificates and instruments 
necessary to obtain tax credits from the TDHCA (collectively, the “Contracts”), providing among 
other things for financing, acquisition, construction, equipping, and improvement of the Project; 
and use, operation, and maintenance of the Project, all as shall be authorized, required, or permitted 
by law and as shall be satisfactory to the Authority and the User; 

(b) if required, work with a historically underutilized business (“HUB”) or qualified 
nonprofit sharing ownership of the general partner of the User, sharing developer fees and cash 
flow of the User to enable the Project to be competitive in its tax credit 

(c) own the real estate and serve as the general contractor for the Project to obtain tax 
exemptions; 

(d) take or cause to be taken such other actions as may be required to implement the 
aforesaid undertakings or as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof. 

Neither the State of Texas (the “State”), the City, nor any political Authority, subdivision, or 
agency of the State shall be obligated to pay any debt or other obligation of the User or the 
Project and that neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State, the City, or any 
political, subdivision, or agency thereof is pledged to any obligation relating to the Project. 

Section 2. It is understood by the Authority, and the User has represented to the 
Authority, that in consideration of the Authority’s adoption of this Resolution, and subject to the 
terms and conditions hereof, the User has agreed that the User will: 

(a)  pay all Project costs which are not or cannot be paid or reimbursed from the 
proceeds of any debt; and  



 

 

(b) indemnify and hold harmless the Authority and the City against all losses, costs, 
damages, expenses, and liabilities of whatsoever nature (including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, litigation and court costs, amounts paid in settlement, and amounts paid to 
discharge judgments) directly or indirectly resulting from, arising out of or related to the Project, 
or the design, construction, equipping, installation, operation, use, occupancy, maintenance, or 
ownership of the Project (other than claims arising from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the Authority or the City). 

Section 3. This Resolution shall be deemed to constitute the acceptance of the User’s 
proposal that it be further induced to proceed with providing the Project.  Provided that neither 
the User nor any other party is entitled to rely on this Resolution as a commitment to 
enter into the proposed transaction, and the Authority reserves the right not to enter into 
the proposed transaction either with or without cause and with or without notice, and in 
such event the Authority shall not be subject to any liability or damages of any nature.  
Neither the User nor anyone claiming by, through or under the User, nor any investment 
banking firm or potential purchaser shall have any claim against the Authority whatsoever 
as a result of any decision by the Authority not to enter into the proposed transaction. 

Section 4. The Board authorizes the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Executive 
Director, or any Commissioner of the Board to execute any contracts and take any and all actions 
required to obtain tax credits, equity financing and debt financing, and authorizes Mark B. Willson 
or R. McKie Edmonson, each as a representative of the User, to execute any applications and 
submissions to TDHCA for its 9% housing tax credit program. 

Section 5. The Board authorizes the negotiation and execution by any officer(s) of the 
Board of the MOU setting forth the details of the Project. 

Section 6. The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Executive Director, or any 
Commissioner of the Board are authorized to take any and all action necessary to carry out and 
consummate the transactions described in or contemplated by the documents approved hereby or 
otherwise to give effect to the actions authorized hereby and the intent hereof. 

Section 7. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the Board. 

Section 8. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 9. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the Board 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

Section 10. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 



 

 

Section 11. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage. 

 
* * * 

  



 

 

PARK AT DOGWOOD APARTMENTS 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned officer of the New Braunfels Housing Authority (the “Authority”) hereby 
certifies as follows: 

1. In accordance with the bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners of 
the Authority (the “Board”) held a meeting on October 17, 2024 (the “Meeting”), of the duly 
constituted officers and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present.  
Whereupon among other business transacted at the Meeting, a written 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 202410170006 AND INDUCEMENT AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF ALL FILINGS AND AGREEMENTS WITH TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS IN 
CONNECTION WITH APPLICATIONS FOR LOW INCOME HOUSING 
TAX CREDITS FOR THE PARK AT DOGWOOD APARTMENTS 
TRANSACTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING; AND OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH 

(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.  
It was then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due 
discussion, said motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and 
carried by a majority vote of the Board. 

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached 
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of 
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified 
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the 
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the 
Bylaws of the Authority. 

 
SIGNED AND SEALED October 17, 2024. 

 
        
Henry Alvarez 
Executive Director 

 
  



 

Page 62 of 62 

 
E.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

1. Operations Update
 

F. ADJOURNMENT.  


